
1/27/2021  1 

  
 

 
Meeting Date December 2, 2020 
Meeting Time 2:00 p.m. 
Meeting Location TEAMS Tele-Conference Meeting 
Committee Chairman Brady Chapman 
Committee Note Taker Amanda Means 
Attendance Committee Members:  Board Members: 

David Ballard, Vice-Chair 
Brady Chapman, Chair 
Susan Harrigan 
John Horne 
Garin Hoover  
Deanna Howell 
Timothy Polk 
Cindy Spray 
Robert Stanell 
Charles Tokarz 
 
 
 
  

Mary Foreman 
Charlie Kennedy  
Staff: 
Doug Wagner, Deputy Superintendent of Business 
Services and Operations 
Tim Bargeron, Associate Superintendent of Finance 
Jacob Davis, HR Operations Analyst 
Ryan Juengling, Fiscal Specialist 
Cathy Miley, Senior Financial Analyst 
Tammy Taylor, Director of Finance 
Amanda Means, Agency Clerk 
Kelly Collins, Executive Assistant 
 
Community Members: 
Norm Nelson 
Bridget Mendel 
Dr. Napoleon Mills 
Glen Gibellina 

 

Opening 
 
 

Call to Order 
• Chair Chapman called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.         

Audio Recording 
• Chair Chapman announced the meeting was being audio recorded. 

Approval of the Minutes 
• Chair Chapman asked for approval of the minutes from the October 7, 2020 

Meeting. 
 
Motion:  The motion to approve the minutes from the October 7, 2020 Meeting was 
made by Mr. Horne and seconded by Mr. Stanell. 
Vote:  The motion passed 6-0.  Ms. Spray, Mr. Polk, Ms. Howell, and Ms. Harrigan were 
absent for the vote. 
  
Welcome New Member Mr. Timothy Polk 

• Chair Chapman welcomed the newly appointed committee member, Mr. 
Timothy Polk who was appointed during the October 27, 2020 School Board 
Meeting. 
 
Mr. Polk provided a brief explanation of his background and experiences. 

 
Public Comment Notes: Public Comment as follows: 

Norm Nelson – spoke regarding the millage resolution. 
Bridget Mendel – spoke regarding the millage resolution and District spending. 
Glen Gibellina – spoke regarding the millage resolution and the Committee. 

For the School District of Manatee County 
Committee Notes / Minutes 

CITIZENS’ FINANCIAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 



1/27/2021  2 

 
Old Business 
 

Committee Assignments and Leadership 
Notes:  Chair Chapman discussed Committee assignments and referred to the 
assignments from the October 2020 meeting as follows: 
 

• Income and Deployment: Mr. Ballard, Ms. Barber, Ms. Howell, and Ms. Spray.  
• Data Analytics: Chair Chapman, Mr. Hoover, Mr. Horne, Mr. Stanell, and Mr. 

Tokarz.  
• Communications: Chair Chapman and Ms. Harrigan  

 
Chair Chapman requested a member to be Chair of the Data Analytics Subcommittee. 
As former Chair, Mr. Stanell noted that he would like to assist and participate but 
would be moving in June and does not want to remain as Chair. John Horne 
volunteered to be the Chair of the Data Analytics Committee. There was no 
opposition. 
 
Chair Chapman noted that some of the members of the Income and Deployment 
Subcommittee were not in attendance. He requested Mr. Polk consider this 
Committee. Mr. Polk stated his interest in serving on the subcommittee, noting the 
importance of teacher income. The Committee welcomed Mr. Polk to the Income and 
Deployment Subcommittee. Chair Chapman requested Mr. David Ballard be the 
interim Chair for the Committee. Mr. Ballard agreed. 
 
Reserve Allocations 
Notes: Chair Chapman inquired about an update regarding the 3% reserve 
allocations discussed during the October 7, 2020 Committee Meeting. Mr. Tim 
Bargeron provided an update and noted that Ms. Tammy Taylor provided a fund 
balance breakdown of the millage. He shared a spreadsheet to show the summary. 
Ms. Taylor confirmed the information.  
 
Mr. Hoover requested a copy of the spreadsheet be shared with the Committee 
Members and requested any documents being discussed be distributed prior to the 
meeting.  
 

New Business Ballot Language and Our Committees Role in That Process 
Notes: Chair Chapman noted that Mr. Ballard had requested this item be added to 
the agenda and requested that he start the discussion. Mr. Ballard discussed the 
Committees’ role in the process and asked if the Committee thought they should 
review the ballot language and make suggestions to the District. Mr. Hoover stated 
that he believes the Committee should have a role in the process and stated he was 
not in support of the millage referendum.  
 
The Committee held discussion regarding the millage resolution and ballot language. 
Mr. Stanell noted that the original question was whether the Committee should have 
input into the ballot language. Mr. Hoover stated he would like to determine if the 
referendum is prudent. Chair Chapman clarified that the role of the Committee is to 
determine if the funds are doing what they were intended to do. Ms. Foreman stated 
that the Committee should review their Charter and read from the Charter. Ms. Spray 
stated she would like to see a reduction to the millage of half.  
 
Chair Chapman summarized the discussion and asked if the Committee has a role in 
cleaning up the language of the ballot.  
 



1/27/2021  3 

Mr. Stanell spoke regarding the findings of the Data Analytics Committee and noted 
they do not have enough data yet. 
 
Ms. Harrigan inquired about the approval of the Committee’s Charter. She stated the 
amount of the millage was not determined by the Committee.  
 
Chair Chapman reiterated the original question regarding the role in determining the 
ballot language. 
 
Mr. Tokarz stated that the language does need to be revised and the Committee 
should offer assistance. Mr. Horne agreed with Mr. Tokarz and stated that the 
Committee should provide suggestions for the ballot language. Ms. Spray also 
agreed. 
 
Chair Chapman asked Mrs. Foreman for her opinion as a representative of the Board. 
Mrs. Foreman responded that it would be fine for the Committee to offer suggestions. 
 
Mr. Polk noted his desire to make solid recommendations to help move the District 
forward. 
 
Ms. Spray stated the importance of making recommendations to the Board prior to 
the Board creating the ballot language. 
 
Ms. Howell stated that she is an employee of the School District and noted the 
importance of the referendum money and helping employees. 
 
Mr. Horne clarified the role of the Committee and noted the Committee needed to 
continue looking at data. Chair Chapman stated that the expansion of the STEM 
program and the salary of the teachers demonstrates that the District did spend the 
money in the way they said they would. 
 
Motion: Mr. Garin Hoover made a motion to ask the District to provide relevant data 
within 30 days demonstrating that the tax has led to positive results regarding student 
achievement. Mr. Polk seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Horne inquired about the specificness of the question. Mr. Polk requested the 
Committee provide a list of items. Mr. Hoover stated he made the motion broad to 
allow the District to provide the data necessary for proof. Ms. Spray spoke regarding 
millage dollars and employee retention. Mr. Stanell stated they may not be able to 
collect any new data until May 2021 due to the annual measurements.  
 
Following suggestions from Mr. Horne and Mr. Stanell, Mr. Hoover amended his 
motion to include objective data and information of the previously passed 
referendum. The motion was seconded by Mr. Polk. 
 
Mr. Hoover restated his motion for the record that the Committee request of the 
Manatee County School District to provide objective documentation that supports the 
original tax and its intended benefits. Mr. Chapman called the question. 
 
Vote: The motion passed 9-1.  
Ayes: Horne, Spray, Ballard, Tokarz, Polk, Howell, Harrigan, Hoover, Stanell 
Nays: Chapman 
 



1/27/2021 4 

Mr. Hoover asked for clarification from Ms. Howell regarding a statement she made 
about the referendum regarding a $1 raise. 

Mr. Horne requested to set a time that the Committee could announce a 
subcommittee meeting so that he and Mr. Stanell could work together. Chair 
Chapman agreed and suggested this occur the first week in January.  

Administrative Matters Date of Next Committee Meeting – 
Notes: Chair Chapman discussed the dates for the next Committee meeting and 
stated that the next meeting would be February 3, 2021 and subcommittee dates 
would be scheduled for January. 

Mr. Wagner requested the data requests be shared with the District and the District 
would provide the information. Chair Chapman requested the Committee Members 
send their requests to the Agency Clerk. 

Mr. Hoover inquired about his previous request for data regarding the numbers of 
classroom teachers. 

Mr. Wagner clarified that the data was sent the day after the request and provided 
the numbers. 

Mr. Bargeron spoke regarding the budget. 

Agenda Items for Next Committee Meeting 
Notes: There were no requests. 

Comments from 
Committee Members, 
Board Members, and 
Staff 

Notes: Chair Chapman thanked Mr. Polk for joining the Committee. 

Adjournment Motion:  Motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Polk and seconded by Ms. Spray. 
Vote: The motion passed 10-0. 

Notes:  Chair Chapman adjourned the meeting at 3:50 PM. 

Dates to Remember a) Board Workshops
b) Board Meetings December 8, 2020 at 5:45 

January 12, 2021 at 5:45 

_____________________________________         ________________________________________ 
Chairman, Committee Note Taker, Committee 




